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47 U.S.C. 154(), 161, 301, 302, 303(e),
303(f), 303(r), 304, 307 and 332(b).

Total Annual Burden: 167 hours.

Total Annual Cost: No cost.

Privacy Act Impact Assessment: No
impact(s).

Nature and Extent of Confidentiality:
There is no need for confidentiality with
this collection of information.

Needs and Uses: The Commission
will submit this information collection
to the Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) as a new collection after this 60
day comment period to obtain the full
three-year clearance from OMB.

On March 29, 2017 the Federal
Communications Commission released a
Report and Order, Amendment of Parts
2,15, 80, 90, 97, and 101 of the
Commission’s Rules Regarding
Implementation of the Final Acts of the
World Radiocommunication Conference
(Geneva, 2012)(WRC-12), Other
Allocation Issues, and Related Rule
Updates, ET Docket No. 15-99, FCC 17—
33, which inter alia, amends the
Commission’s rules for the Amateur
Radio Service to provide for frequency
sharing requirements in the 135.7-137.8
kHz (2200 meter) and 472—479 kHz (630
meter) bands. These rules will ensure
the compatibility of amateur radio
operations and Power Line Carrier (PLC)
systems that operate in these bands, and
will promote the shared use of these
bands. As background, in the larger 9—
490 kHz band, electric utilities operate
PLC systems on power transmission
lines for communications important to
the reliability and security of electric
service to the public. The Commission
found that the identification of
transmission lines are not always
readily identifiable and that amateur
operators may not be able to determine
whether PLC systems operate in the
relevant bands on the subject
transmission lines. For these reasons,
the Commission adopted a notification
process to ensure that amateur stations
seeking to operate in these bands are
located outside of a minimum
separation distance.

Specifically, the information
collection requirements contained in
Section 97.303(g)(2) requires prior to
commencement of operations in these
bands, amateur operators must notify
the Utilities Telecom Council (UTC) of
their intent by submitting their call
signs, intended band or bands of
operation, and the coordinates of their
antenna’s fixed location. Amateur
stations will be permitted to commence
operations after a 30-day period unless
UTC notifies the applicant that its
requested location is located within one
kilometer of PLC systems operating in
the same or overlapping frequencies.

Federal Communications Commission.
Marlene H. Dortch,

Secretary, Office of the Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2017-08434 Filed 4-25-17; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6712-01-P

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
CORPORATION

Sunshine Act Meeting

Pursuant to the provisions of the
“Government in the Sunshine Act” (5
U.S.C. 552b), notice is hereby given that
at 12:30 p.m. on Monday, April 24,
2017, the Board of Directors of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
met in closed session to consider
matters related to the Corporation’s
supervision, corporate, and resolution
activities.

In calling the meeting, the Board
determined, on motion of Vice
Chairman Thomas M. Hoenig, seconded
by Director Thomas J. Curry
(Comptroller of the Currency),
concurred in by Director Richard
Cordray (Director, Consumer Financial
Protection Bureau), and Chairman
Martin J. Gruenberg, that Corporation
business required its consideration of
the matters which were to be the subject
of this meeting on less than seven days’
notice to the public; that no earlier
notice of the meeting was practicable;
that the public interest did not require
consideration of the matters in a
meeting open to public observation; and
that the matters could be considered in
a closed meeting by authority of
subsections (c)(4), (c)(8), and (c)(9)(B) of
the “Government in the Sunshine Act”
(5 U.S.C. 552b(c)(4), (c)(8), and (c)(9)(B).

Dated: April 24, 2017.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
Robert E. Feldman,

Executive Secretary.

[FR Doc. 201708537 Filed 4-24-17; 4:15 pm]
BILLING CODE 6714-01-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

Notice of Agreement Filed

The Commission hereby gives notice
of the filing of the following agreements
under the Shipping Act of 1984.
Interested parties may submit comments
on the agreement to the Secretary,
Federal Maritime Commission,
Washington, DC 20573, within twelve
days of the date this notice appears in
the Federal Register. Copies of the
agreement are available through the
Commission’s Web site (www.fmc.gov)
or by contacting the Office of

Agreements at (202)-523-5793 or
tradeanalysis@fmec.gov.

Agreement No.: 011290-041.

Title: International Vessel Operators
Dangerous Goods Association
Agreement.

Parties: Alianga Navegacao e Logistica
Ltda.; APL Co. PTE Ltd.; Atlantic
Container Line AB; Bermuda Container
Line; China Shipping Container Lines
Co., Ltd.; COSCO Container Lines
Company Limited; Crowley Maritime
Corporation; Evergreen Line Joint
Service Agreement; (Taiwan) Ltd.;
Hamburg-Siidamerikanische
Dampfschifffahrts-Gesellschaft KG;
Hanjin Shipping Co., Ltd.; Hapag-Lloyd
AG; Horizon Lines, LLC; Hyundai
Merchant Marine Co., Ltd.; Independent
Container Line Ltd.; Kawasaki Kisen
Kaisha Ltd.; Maersk Line A/S; Marine
Transport Management, Inc.; Maruba
SCA; Matson Navigation Company;
Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Ltd.; National
Shipping Co. of Saudi Arabia; Nippon
Yusen Kaisha Line; Orient Overseas
Container Line Limited; Seaboard
Marine Ltd.; Senator Lines GmbH;
Tropical Shipping & Construction Co.,
Ltd.; Yang Ming Marine Transport
Corp.; and Zim Integrated Shipping
Services, Ltd.

Filing Party: Wayne R. Rohde, Esq_;
Cozen O’Connor; 1200 Nineteenth Street
NW.; Washington, DC 20036.

Synopsis: The Amendment would
delete Horizon Lines, LLC; Maruba SCA;
Senator Lines GmbH; Zim Integrated
Shipping Services, Ltd.; China Shipping
Container Lines Co., Ltd.; and Hanjin
Shipping Co., Ltd. as parties to the
Agreement. The Amendment would add
Wallenius Wilhelmsen Logistics and
Wan Hai Lines Ltd. as parties to the
Agreement, and change the name of the
carrier formerly known as The National
Shipping Company of Saudi Arabia to
Bahri General Cargo.

By Order of the Federal Maritime
Commission.

Dated: April 21, 2017.

Rachel E. Dickon,

Assistant Secretary.

[FR Doc. 201708443 Filed 4-25-17; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6731-AA-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION
[Docket No. 17-03]

Antonio Egberto Carneiro Lima v.
Fastway Moving and Storage, Inc.,
d/b/a Dream Cargo, d/b/a Fastway,
d/b/a Fastway Moving, et al.; Notice of
Filing of Complaint and Assignment

Notice is given that a complaint has
been filed with the Federal Maritime
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Commission (Commission) by Antonio
Egberto Carneiro Lima, hereinafter
“Complainant,” against Fastway Moving
and Storage, Inc., d/b/a Dream Cargo, d/
b/a Fastway, d/b/a Fastway Moving;
Fastway Moving and Services Corp.;
Fastway Moving and Trading Corp.;
Abreu Lopes Transportes LTDA; and
Abreu Logistics USA, LLC d/b/a Abreu
Logistics & Cargo, hereinafter
“Respondents.” Complainant states that
Respondents are New Jersey and Florida
corporations which “operate
interchangeably as one business and are
inexorably intertwined” and that
Fastway Moving, Inc. is an FMC
licensed non-vessel operating common
carrier.

Complainant states he utilized
Respondents’ “‘services to transport
approximately 33 cubic meters of
household goods by water between the
United States and Brazil.” Complainant
alleges that Respondents allowed illegal
items to be included with
Complainant’s household goods which
caused the IRS to block the release of
said items in Brazil. Complainant
alleges that despite paying for the
“complete services” package with
Respondent ‘‘the Fastway Entities”, he
had to personally work to resolve the
matter with the IRS, pay the port fees,
container, storage and other fees
associated with his shipment.

Complainant files this claim “as a
result of Respondents’ violation of
COGSA, the Shipping Act, and the
FMC’s regulations pursuant to COGSA
and the Shipping Act at 46 CFR part
515.” Specifically, complainant alleges
that the Respondents:

“a. [failed] to establish or observe just and
reasonable practices related to the receiving,
handling, or delivering of property in
violation of 46 U.S.C. 41102(c);

b. [allowed] a person or persons to obtain
transportation for property at less than the
rates or charges established by the carrier in
its tariff or service contract by means of false
billing, false classification, false weighting,
false measurement, or other unjust or unfair
device or means in violation of 46 U.S.C.
41104(1);

c. [provided] a service in the liner trade
that is not in accordance with the rates,
charges, classifications, rules, and practices
contained in a tariff published or a service
contract entered into under chapter 405 of
[Title 46], in violation of 46 U.S.C.
41104(2)(A);

d. knowingly and willfully [accepted]
cargo from and [transported] cargo for the
account of an ocean transportation
intermediary that does not have a tariff as
required by section 40501 of Title 46 and a
bond, insurance, or other surety as required
by section 40902 of Title 46, in violation of
46 U.S.C. 41104(11); and

e. any other charge of this type or of similar
nature that is found to be unlawful under the
circumstances.”

Complainant seeks reparations in the
amount of $129,872.22, and other relief. The
full text of the complaint can be found in the
Commission’s Electronic Reading Room at
www.fme.gov/17-03/.

This proceeding has been assigned to
the Office of Administrative Law Judges.
The initial decision of the presiding
officer in this proceeding shall be issued
by April 20, 2018, and the final decision
of the Commission shall be issued by
November 5 2018.

Rachel E. Dickon,
Assistant Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2017-08386 Filed 4-25-17; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6731-AA-P

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Change in Bank Control Notices;
Acquisitions of Shares of a Bank or
Bank Holding Company

The notificants listed below have
applied under the Change in Bank
Control Act (12 U.S.C. 1817(j)) and
§225.41 of the Board’s Regulation Y (12
CFR 225.41) to acquire shares of a bank
or bank holding company. The factors
that are considered in acting on the
notices are set forth in paragraph 7 of
the Act (12 U.S.C. 1817()(7)).

The notices are available for
immediate inspection at the Federal
Reserve Bank indicated. The notices
also will be available for inspection at
the offices of the Board of Governors.
Interested persons may express their
views in writing to the Reserve Bank
indicated for that notice or to the offices
of the Board of Governors. Comments
must be received not later than May 12,
2017.

A. Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago
(Colette A. Fried, Assistant Vice
President) 230 South LaSalle Street,
Chicago, Illinois 60690—1414:

1. William M. Parks and Ruth M.
Parks, individually, and as co-trustees
of the Ann F. Parks Special Trust
Number One, Muscatine, Iowa; Ann F.
Parks Special Trust Number One,
individually, Muscatine, Iowa; Carrie A.
Zorich, Daniel P. Stein, and Timothy ].
Stein, all individually, and as co-
trustees of the Inter Vivos Stock Trust of
Simon G. Stein IV FBO James P. Stein,
Muscatine, Iowa; Inter Vivos Stock Trust
of Simon G. Stein IV FBO James P.
Stein, individually, Muscatine, Iowa;
Daniel P. Stein as trustee of the Daniel
P. Stein Revocable Trust dated October
7, 2008, James P. Stein Trust Number
One, and the Inter Vivos Stock Trust of
Simon G. Stein IV FBO James P. Stein,

Muscatine, Iowa; James P. Stein as
trustee of the James P. Stein Revocable
Trust dated December 16, 2005 and the
Inter Vivos Stock Trust of Simon G.
Stein IV FBO James P. Stein, Muscatine,
Iowa; Timothy ]. Stein as trustee of the
Timothy J. Stein Revocable Trust dated
August 10, 2012, James P. Stein Trust
Number One, and the Inter Vivos Stock
Trust of Simon G. Stein IV FBO James
P. Stein, Lakeway, Texas; Carrie A.
Zorich as trustee of the Carrie A. Zorich
Revocable Trust dated July 23, 2007,
James P. Stein Trust Number One, and
the Inter Vivos Stock Trust of Simon G.
Stein IV FBO James P. Stein, Muscatine,
Iowa; Maryann Bramhall-Lambert as
trustee of the GST Exempt Trust for
benefit of James P. Stein Family, Iowa
City, Iowa; Ruth M. Parks as trustee of
the William M. Parks Family
Intergenerational Trust, William M.
Parks Family Intergenerational Trust I,
John Lee Parks, II Family
Intergenerational Trust, and the Ann F.
Parks and John L. Parks
Intergenerational Trust FBO JLP II;
William M. Parks as trustee of the John
Lee Parks, II Family Intergenerational
Trust and the Ann F. Parks and John L.
Parks Intergenerational Trust FBO JLP
II; John L. Parks, II as trustee of the Ann
F. Parks and John L. Parks
Intergenerational Trust FBO WMP; GST
Exempt Trust for benefit of James P.
Stein Family, Muscatine, Iowa; Daniel P.
Stein Revocable Trust dated October 7,
2008, Muscatine, Iowa; James P. Stein
Revocable Trust dated December 16,
2005, Muscatine, Iowa; Timothy J. Stein
Revocable Trust dated August 10, 2012,
Lakeway, Texas; Carrie A. Zorich
Revocable Trust dated July 23, 2007,
Muscatine, Iowa; James P. Stein Trust
Number One, Muscatine, lowa; William
M. Parks Family Intergenerational Trust,
Muscatine, Iowa; William M. Parks
Family Intergenerational Trust II,
Muscatine, Iowa; John Lee Parks, II
Family Intergenerational Trust,
Muscatine, Iowa; Ann F. Parks and John
L. Parks Intergenerational Trust FBO
WMP, Muscatine, Iowa; Ann F. Parks
and John L. Parks Intergenerational
Trust FBO JLP II, Muscatine, lowa;
Thomas L. Lambert, Iowa City, Iowa;
Lambert Farms, LLC, Iowa City, Iowa; in
addition to, James P. Stein; Timothy J.
Stein; Carrie A. Zorich; Daniel P. Stein;
Benjamin L. Parks, Iowa City, Iowa;
William M. Parks; and Ruth M. Parks,
Muscatine, Iowa, as members of Sawyer
Group Family Council which votes and
retain voting shares owned by the Ann
F. Parks Special Trust Number One;
GST Exempt Trust for benefit of James
P. Stein Family; Daniel P. Stein
Revocable Trust dated October 7, 2008;
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